#### **MINUTES**

#### Nevada Children's Justice Act (CJA) Task Force

#### <u>May 11, 2021</u>

#### <u>9:00am</u>

#### 1. Call to Order- Roll Call

Salli Kerr, Vice-Chair of the Nevada Children's Justice Act Task Force called the meeting to order at 9:04 AM. She reminded the group that proxies can attend the meeting, as long as written notice is given in advance; e-mails to Beverly Brown are sufficient.

#### Members Present:

Name	Organization
Allison Stephens	Statewide Family Network Director NV PEP
Cheryl Cooley	Clark County Department of Family Services- CAC
Desiree Mattice	Sergeant- Dept. of Public Safety
Fran Maldonado	Western Nevada Community College
Jamie Wong	Division of Child and Family Services
Janice Wolf	Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada
Jonathon Slothower, DO	Great Basin Advocacy Center
Kimberly Mull	Victim Advocate
Kristy Mills (proxy)	Nye County CAC
Laurie Jackson (proxy)	Division of Child and Family Services
Mari Parlade	Clark County Department of Family Services
Salli Kerr, Vice Chair	Western Regional CAC
Shannon McCoy	Washoe County Human Services Agency
Sharon Benson	Deputy Attorney General

#### Members Absent:

Name	Organization
Judge David Gibson	District Court Judge- Eighth Judicial District
Cole McBride	Washoe County CAC
Cory Martin	Great Bain CAC (Elko)
Jennifer Rains	Washoe Public Defender

#### Guests:

Name	Organization
Judy Henderson	Training Coordinator for Nevada Coalition to End
	Sexual and Domestic Violence
Amber Batchelor	Program Director- Nevada Coalition to End Sexual
	and Domestic Violence
Shannon Gildea	Court Improvement Program

Zaide Martinez	Court Improvement Program
----------------	---------------------------

#### Staff Support:

Name	Organization
Beverly Brown	Division of Child and Family Services
Bruce Cole (recorder)	Division of Child and Family Services

#### 2. Initial Public Comment

No comments.

#### 3. Information Only: Review of duties, responsibilities, and goals of the CJA Task Force

Beverly Brown read the summary of the CJA Goals:

- Training: Front end specialty, discipline specific and advanced.
- Support Implementation of CSEC Coordinated Response Protocol, Task Forces and MDT's.
- Support Establishment of new CAC and improve capacity of existing CAC's or Child Protection MDT's. Use of telehealth and telemedicine.
- Fund requests to improve the investigation, assessment and prosecution of child abuse and neglect through the latest technology and to support the use of new and existing training technologies.
- Identify new or needed changes to policy, regulation and/or legislation to meet requirements of federal program improvement plans and other federal and state initiatives. Support related training and policy needs.

No questions or comments.

#### 4. For Possible Action: Approval of January 12, 2021 meeting minutes. [FOR POSSIBLE ACTION]

Jonathan Slothower moved to approve the minutes. Sharon Benson seconded the motion. No objections, no abstentions. Minutes approved.

# 5. Information Only: Progress report and update from CJA grantees (SFY2020) [FOR DISCUSSION ONLY]

<u>Clark County-</u> Cheryl Cooley informed the group that they have spent \$13,500.00 on virtual forensic interviewing training. They hope to spend the remaining \$6,500.00 on two upcoming trainings with their community partners.

• Beverly Brown suggested they get in contact with the Grants Management Unit in case there is any question of funds being spent after the end of the fiscal year on June 30. Cheryl said that Debbie Watson had sent in a form regarding that issue.

<u>Nevada Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual Violence</u> – Amber Batchelor said they do not expect any need for extensions beyond the end of the fiscal year. Judy Henderson reported that a virtual 2-

day training was conducted for Washoe County and 32 people were awarded CEUs. In evaluations for these trainings, 96 percent of the attendees said their objectives were met, 92 precent found it relevant to their work situation, and 89 percent said their skills were enhanced. In April, this training was held for Clark County. 24 people were awarded CEUs. 95 percent said their objectives were met, 95 percent gained relevant knowledge, and 95 percent said their skills were enhanced. The next training, for the rural communities, is scheduled for June.

<u>Washoe County-</u> Shannon McCoy reported that their grant funds have all been expended. Primarily, the grant funds have been used on laptops for use in the field for more efficient field casework and documentation. Voice recognition software (Dragon Speak) was also purchased. Fourteen staff were funded to attend the Child Welfare League of America training, which ran May 4-6, 2021. A cross-section of staff attended. The county will hold a review of the training, with a plan to share resources and takeaways to the larger staff as a whole

No further questions or comments.

# 6. For Possible Action: Consideration, discussion, and possible action for Task Force membership vacancy and chair vacancy. [FOR POSSIBLE ACTION]

Sharon Benson noted, after reviewing the by-laws, that the committee does not actually vote on new members; rather, recommendations are made, and agencies put forward names for consideration.

Beverly laid out the background on the chair vacancy: Master Carr has retired from bench, and so cannot continue, for now, her role on the committee. Master Carr hopes to be taking up a new position in her community which would make her eligible for returning to the committee and to be chair, as well. Beverly asked if the committee then wished to elect a new chair and consider the filling of the now-vacant judicial membership on the committee.

Sharon related that Master Carr had recommend Massie Mayo for replacement in the judicial slot on the committee. Sharon did not know if Massie would be interested but thought she should pass this along.

Cheryl Cooley asked if this would fill both judicial slot and the chair positions. Sharon answered that the chair is separately elected by the committee. An interim chair could be elected, or Master Carr could return as chair via her new role. Beverly confirmed that the vice-chair position will be up for a vote at the August meeting. Kimberly Mull recommended that Salli Kerr be elected chair, leaving the vice-chair position open until August. Salli was willing to do so, as their will be a chair election in January and Master Carr could return to that role. Sharon said the by-laws would not prevent that. Salli said her personal preference would be to remain as vice-chair. No one present indicated any interest in either position, or in nominating someone else. Kimberly wondered if it was a sure thing that Master Carr can return to the committee. Sharon said that it is. Several members expressed their appreciation at how much more active the committee has been with Master Carr as chair. Kimberly Mull moved that matters stay as is re these positions; Sharon seconded. There was no further discussion. The motion passed unanimously.

7. For Possible Action: Consideration, discussion, and possible action for Task Force to establish subcommittee to address opportunities for CJA to assist Child Advocacy Centers (CAC). [FOR POSSIBLE ACTION]

Salli said role of this committee is to establish this subcommittee, and place members on it, to address CJA goal #3.

Janice Wolf said her previous work in Hawaii demonstrated the importance of establishing and supporting CACs and the need for this subcommittee.

Cheryl Cooley said AB 228, passed this year, legitimized the CAC model for abused children, with the goal being it use for all children. The Nevada chapter has four centers, two nationally accredited and two associated, with the goal to have all accredited. Because of the pandemic, new methods (especially for the rurals) such as tele mental health are being explored.

Beverly said she would like to have a subcommittee, so meetings can be solely dedicated to the work of the CACSs. Sharon said that one person from each CAC should be on the subcommittee to report to the CJA committee. Salli said the state CAC chapter could give their input to the CJA committee. Cheryl said Lisa Ruggerio is the chapter coordinator and asked if she is member of the CJA committee. Salli wondered if there is a category whereby she could be made a member, and CAC matters would be a standing agenda item. Mari Parlade suggested the CAC chapter report regularly at the CJA meeting and there not be a separate subcommittee. Kimberly Mull gave evidence of a CAC who rescued a child groomed for sexual exploitation and the superiority of that to reliance on law enforcement alone in such situations. Sharon added that from a prosecutorial perspective the evidence from a CAC is a great advantage.

Salli suggested that there be a standing agenda item, with CAC representative reporting. The idea Lisa Ruggerio or another CAC representative becoming a member of the committee should also be explored. There doesn't need to be a formal motion at this time on the matter.

## 8. Information Only: Presentation about Court Improvement Program. [FOR DISCUSSION ONLY]

Shannon Gildea of the CIP gave a presentation and overview of the program. The CIP seeks to support children's right to protection from abuse and neglect. CIP was established in 1995 and is overseen by a committee chaired by Justice Nancy Saita. The CIP oversees Federal grants. CIP focuses its efforts on improving court handling of foster care cases, supporting children's protection from abuse and neglect, avoiding unnecessary family separations, furthering permanency, and cultivating judicial leadership in these areas. CIP funds have been used for the Juvenile Dependency Mediation Program; providing technology to the courts during the pandemic; conducting research and data analysis; educating the judicial, legal, and child welfare communities with conferences and trainings; supporting local Community Improvement Councils (CIC).

There were no questions or comments.

9. For Possible Action: Consideration, discussion and possible action by the CJA Task Force to recommend and/or approve, in whole or in part, the following NOFO applications for an award of funding to serve the project in relation to child abuse and neglect cases in Nevada. [FOR POSSIBLE ACTION] Beverly confirmed that there were applications from Kimberly Mull, Salli Kerr, Fran Maldonado, and Janice Wolf. Desiree Mattice, Jamie Wong, and Amber Batchelor all said they had submitted applications. Beverly reminded that committee that funding is to be used for projects and trainings that further enhance the five goals of the CJA; that funds must focus on the front-end of child welfare services and not used for prevention programs or direct services; not used as continuous funding or for routine operations of a program - about five thousand dollars could not be used for the Washoe Child Advocacy Center's recently established victim services position, as that is a direct service. Overall, the NOFO can go over the \$100,000 amount, due to carry-over funds, and that spending was limited somewhat by the pandemic. The current figure for FY 2021 is \$125,212.52.

Sharon asked about funding for training funding requests by Great Basin CAC and Nevada Outreach. Will these be virtual or in-person? Salli said that Nevada Outreach's request was for a hybrid training. Sharon asked further about funding sources for Clark County. Cheryl Cooley said they have contracted with NCAC out of Huntsville, AL, to provide forensic interview training. Sallie asked if carry-over funds would be used by Clark for these trainings. Chery said yes and added that they are doing specialized training for interviewing for CSEC and special needs situations. Sharon asked further for the exact amount which Washoe cannot receive for their victim services position. Beverly said it was \$5579.00. Salli asked about scoring results on the applications. Beverly said they had them for the four applications she mentioned at the beginning, but now the later applications will have to be factored in. Both Salli and Sharon wondered if this would make a material difference, especially given the "extra" funds available, and whether the committee needed to see the scoring numbers to make any decisions.

Sharon moved that the funding amounts be approved, with the modification of removing the \$5579.00 from Washoe, leaving a total of \$119,633.00. Janice Wolf seconded. Mari Parlade explained she had to abstain, given her conflict of interest by working for Clark County. The motion passed with no objections and duly noted abstentions from Mari Parlade, John Slothower and Shannon McCoy.

## 10. Information Only: Announcements. [FOR DISCUSSION ONLY]

Sharon Benson said there will be golf tournament in Washoe County in October to fund raise against human trafficking. This is new, as they had only done dinners in the past, and there will be more information soon.

No further questions or comments.

# 11. Information Only: Future Agenda Items. [FOR DISCUSSION ONLY]

Sharon asked if considering how the committee will be meeting in the future (continuing on Teams, in-person, etc.) could be made an agenda item. Beverly thought it likely that the August meeting will be in-person. She added that that establishing a subcommittee for the NOFO process should be a future agenda item, and that the Children's Bureau was interested in seeing evaluations from the grantees about the activities that CJA funds and this too would be an agenda item.

No further questions or comments.

# 12. Final Public Comment [FOR DISCUSSION ONLY]

No comments.

# 13. Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 10:25 AM.

# CJA Grantee Final Report 2021

As a CJA Grant funds recipient, it is mandatory that a thorough and complete report be provided to the CJA coordinator each quarter during the grant fund year. Failure to provide these reports may result in a withdrawal of grant funds. If you have any questions about the reporting requirements, please contact the CJA Coordinator.

#### Grantee Information:

Name: Sue Meuschke	Date: 7/8/2021	
Agency: Nevada Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual Violence		
FFY2020 Grant Funds Received: \$26	,000	

#### Funds expended: \$26,000.00

<u>Project Title:</u> Supporting Children Experiencing Domestic Violence in the Home: Protecting the Safety and Wellbeing of the Family Unit for Better Outcomes

<u>Activities Funded:</u> Describe the activity funded:

Using the curriculum developed under this grant we completed three six-hour training sessions for CPS staff in Washoe and Clark Counties and Rural Communities in Nevada. We provided three-hour training session on each day for CPS staff on the following dates and geographic areas: March 22<sup>nd</sup> & 24<sup>th</sup> Washoe County; April 6<sup>th</sup> & 7<sup>th</sup> Clark County; and May 24<sup>th</sup> & 26<sup>th</sup> Rural Communities. We also welcomed staff who previously missed the training from other counties to attend this final session.

Evaluation Work: Describe any evaluation work related to this activity including evaluation methods, outputs, and outcomes of the activity. (Please include or attach supporting data, statistics or other relevant documentation when available:)

Pre-and Post-Assessment Surveys were completed as well as training evaluations. Results are compiled and are provided below by geographic region. Numbers of pre-and post-test assessments and evaluations completed may not match attendance numbers since not all participants completed the assessment surveys or evaluation forms. Some did not have names on them so we could not include these in the tracking of scores.

#### WASHOE COUNTY

ATTENDANCE TOTALS = Date 3/22 - 29; Date 3/24 - 32

ASSESSMENT SCORES: (25 completed the pre-and post-assessment surveys)

3 kept the same score & 22 increased their scores & no one lowered their score.

Pre-assessment Lowest scores were 50-60% (7);

Post-assessment Highest scores 90-100% (18)

EVALUATION SURVEYS SUBMITTED: 28; ATTENDANCE CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 7; CEU CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 21

### **CLARK COUNTY**

ATTENDANCE TOTALS = Date 4/6 - 39; Date 4/7 - 38

ASSESSMENT SCORES: (80+ registered and completed the pre-assessment survey and 19 people completed the post-assessment surveys) For the

38/39 in attendance, the scores showed: 8 stayed the same & 20 increased their score & one lowered their score.

Pre-assessment Lowest scores were 60% (9);

Post-assessment Highest score was 90-100% (12)

EVALUATION SURVEYS SUBMITTED: 25; ATTENDANCE CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 13; CEU CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 24

## RURAL

ATTENDANCE TOTALS = Date 6/7 - 19; Date 6/9 - 18

ASSESSMENT SCORES: (12 people completed the pre-and post-assessment surveys.) 1 stayed the same & 11 increased score & no one lowered

their score.

Pre-assessment Lowest scores was 50-60% (8);

Post-assessment Highest scores were 90-100% (8)

EVALUATION SURVEYS SUBMITTED: 10; ATTENDANCE CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 10; CEU CERTIFICATES AWARDED: 9

**Evaluation Summaries:** This information is presented by geographic region. Survey completion was not anonymous since it was a requirement to earn CEUs.

	Response by Geographic Area		
Evaluation Questions	Washoe (28)	Clark (25)	Rural (10)
Were the training objectives met?	97% yes	96% yes	90% yes
I have gained relevant and valuable knowledge about domestic violence.	93% yes	96% yes	80% yes
Overall, I have enhanced my skills to support the safety of children who are experiencing violence in the home.	87% yes	92% yes	80% yes
Regarding learning new content, skills, and/or abilities, please select your level of satisfaction with this two-part series.	80% were very satisfied or satisfied.	96% were very satisfied or satisfied.	80% were very satisfied or satisfied.
The presenter was prepared and demonstrated subject knowledge, effectively presented material, & encouraged participation & questions and was a good listener.	<ul> <li>4.7 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.13 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.07 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.03 out of 5.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>4.68 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.68 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.56 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.56 rating out of 5.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>4.2 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.0 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.1 rating out of 5.</li> <li>4.0 rating out of 5.</li> </ul>
After domestic violence advocates receive their training on CPS, would you be interested in joining a virtual meeting to discuss what services they provide for survivors and their children?	67% yes	66.67% yes	50% yes

As a CJA Grant funds recipient, it is mandatory that a thorough and complete report be provided to the CJA coordinator each quarter during the grant fund year. Failure to provide these reports may result in a withdrawal of grant funds. If you have any questions about the reporting requirements, please contact the CJA Coordinator.

#### Grantee Information

Name: Susan Meuschke	Date: 7/23/2021	
Agency: Nevada Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual Violence		
FFY2020 Grant Funds Received: \$30,000.00		
Funds expended: \$957.63		

# Activities Funded and Evaluation Work

Describe the activity funded:

The goal of this project is to expand basic understanding of the risk and protective factors for children living in homes with domestic violence. The proposed project will include: 1) Using the evaluation and assessment reports from the current grant cycle trainings, review and update the information and materials for an additional three six-hour trainings for CPS workers in Nevada - *Work has begun on updating the training curriculum based on the evaluation from the previous grant.* 2) Provide three virtual trainings for approximately 120 CPS workers in three specific regions: Clark County; Washoe County; and rural counties - *We have begun efforts to schedule the three trainings – dates should be finalized by the end of September.* 

Describe any evaluation work related to this activity including evaluation methods, outputs, and outcomes of the activity. (Please include or attach supporting data, statistics or other relevant documentation when available):

No evaluations.

As a CJA Grant funds recipient, it is mandatory that a thorough and complete report be provided to the CJA coordinator each quarter during the grant fund year. Failure to provide these reports may result in a withdrawal of grant funds. If you have any questions about the reporting requirements, please contact the CJA Coordinator.

#### Grantee Information

Name: Nevada Outreach Training Organization	Date: 7/21/2021
Agency: Nevada Outreach Training Organization -	Nye County Children's Advocacy Center
FFY2020 Grant Funds Received: \$23,977	
Funds expended: \$0	

## Activities Funded and Evaluation Work

Describe the activity funded:

Training for multi-disciplinary team for the Nye County Children's Advocacy Center. This training will occur in January 2022.

Describe any evaluation work related to this activity including evaluation methods, outputs, and outcomes of the activity. (Please include or attach supporting data, statistics or other relevant documentation when available):

None at this time

As a CJA Grant funds recipient, it is mandatory that a thorough and complete report be provided to the CJA coordinator each quarter during the grant fund year. Failure to provide these reports may result in a withdrawal of grant funds. If you have any questions about the reporting requirements, please contact the CJA Coordinator.

#### **Grantee Information**

Name: Cheryl Cooley	Date: 7/28/2021	
Agency: Southern Nevada Children's Advocacy Center		
FFY2020 Grant Funds Received: \$27,000		
Funds expended: \$13,500		

# Activities Funded and Evaluation Work

Describe the activity funded:

We are holding the first of our 2 forensic interview trainings this week.

Describe any evaluation work related to this activity including evaluation methods, outputs, and outcomes of the activity. (Please include or attach supporting data, statistics or other relevant documentation when available):

We are hosting this class for 25 people. We have multiple community partners who have sent representatives to this course. At the end of this week, we will submit evaluations of the forensic interview training.

As a CJA Grant funds recipient, it is mandatory that a thorough and complete report be provided to the CJA coordinator each quarter during the grant fund year. Failure to provide these reports may result in a withdrawal of grant funds. If you have any questions about the reporting requirements, please contact the CJA Coordinator.

#### **Grantee Information**

Name: Cole McBride	Date: 7/21/2021	
Agency: Washoe County Chil	Advocacy Center	
FFY2020 Grant Funds Receiv	əd: 19,207	
Funds expended: 0		

## Activities Funded and Evaluation Work

Describe the activity funded:

We have not spent the funding yet but will have a full report of the funds spent next quarter.

Describe any evaluation work related to this activity including evaluation methods, outputs, and outcomes of the activity. (Please include or attach supporting data, statistics or other relevant documentation when available):

Click or tap here to enter text.